
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

10 September 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Economic Development Board
DATE: 18 September 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

DAVID WILLIAMS 
Chief Executive

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Jones (ex-Officio) and Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Philpott (Chairman)
Councillor Beavis (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Bateman 
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Mrs Furlong
Councillor Mrs Huggins

Councillor Hutchison
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Raffaelli

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Economic Development Board
18 September 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.  

3.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD HELD 3 JULY 2019 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 16th September 2019.  The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
16 September 2019).

6.  GOSPORT COMMUNITY LOTTERY EVALUATION 

To provide Members with an evaluation in respect of Gosport’s 
Community Lottery based on its first year of operation.

7.  SURRENDER OF EXISTING LEASE AND REGRANT OF NEW 
LEASE OF LAKESIDE CAFÉ, COMPASS POINT 

To seek the Board’s approval to accept the surrender of the current 
lease and grant a new lease to the new owner of the Lakeside Café 
based at the Compass Point, Walpole Park, Gosport.



Economic Development Board
18 September 2019

8.  LAND AT GRANGE FARM, ROWNER FOR GARDEN CENTRE 
DEVELOPMENT & GATEWAY 

At the Economic Development Board on 19th September 2018 
the Board accepted the recommendations of the Report ie

 The long leasehold disposal of the Gosport 
Borough Council land shown edged red on the plan 
at Appendix A to the report together with rights of 
access, services etc for a term of 99 years and 
subject to the conditions set out in the report.

 Following the completion of open marketing, to 
authorise the Deputy Chief Executive in 
consultation with Economic Development Board 
Chairman to finalise the terms of a new 
Development Agreement, Agreement for Lease and 
Lease of the above, complete the disposal and on 
completion, report back and update the Board.

The detail of the September 2018 report confirmed that the 
recommendation was to dispose of approx 5 acres of land at 
Home Heath, Grange Farm, to kick-start the development of a 
new retail garden centre by a garden centre operating 
company.
The new garden centre would incorporate facilities eg WC's, 
café and parking etc that would also be used by visitors to the 
adjacent Alver Valley Country Park and thus provide a 
substantial proportion of the amenities required for the 
Grange Farm Gateway into the Alver Valley Country Park.

9.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Economic Development Board
3 July 2019

1

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WAS HELD ON 3 JULY 2019 

Councillors Ms Ballard, Bateman, Beavis, Blackman, Burgess (Substituting for Carter), 
Mrs Cully, Mrs Furlong, Mrs Huggins, Hutchison, Johnston, Miss Kelly, Pepper, Philpott, 
Mrs Prickett and Raffaelli

8. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

An apology for non attendance was received from Councillor Carter.

9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Beavis and Bateman declared a pecuniary interest in the Lee on Solent SPD and 
left the room and took no further part in the discussion or voting thereon. 

10. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
BOARD HELD ON 13 MARCH 2019 AND 16 MAY 2019 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings held on the 13th March 2019 and the 16th 
May 2019 be signed as a true and correct record. 

11. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

12. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

There were none. 

13. LEE WEST AREA OF SPECIAL CHARACTER SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 
DOCUMENT (SPD): ADOPTED VERSION 

 Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager requesting that 
consideration be given to a request for the Board to adopt the Lee West Area of Special 
Character Supplementary Planning Document. 

Councillors Beavis and Bateman declared a personal interest, left the room and took no 
further part in the voting or discussion thereon. 

The Board were advised that there were no updated to the report but that there was a slight 
amendment to Appendix 2 page 45, comment 38 to insert the full comment, rather than a 
summary. 

Members welcomed the proposal and recognised the hard work that had gone into 
producing the document. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that designating an Area of 
Special Character was a lesser standing than listed buildings and a conservation area but 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Economic Development Board
3 July 2019

2

still recognised the important character of an area and as a result could be considered as a 
material planning consideration and hold weight within the local plan. 

The Board were also advised that the designation as an area of special character would be 
a consideration for any appeals against planning decisions that may occur, allowing the 
character of the area to be considered. 

Members welcomed that the document recognised the importance of the green areas in the 
area and the importance of their preservation 

RESOLVED: That the Lee West Area of Special Character Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) be adopted. 

14. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) SPENDING PROTOCOL - 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE NEIGHBOURHOOD PORTION 

Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager requesting that 
consideration be given to approval of arrangements for spending the neighbourhood portion 
of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which the Council was currently collecting from 
developers.

Members were advised of one update to the application form in that the word planning be 
removed from the consents required to ensure that all necessary consents were in place. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the proposal was not a 
merger with the Gosport Lottery and that it was a proposal for the allocation of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and that the proposal was to follow the same model as 
the Gosport Lottery as a template. 

The Board was advised that the CIL money was generated from developer contributions 
and the Board was being asked to find a way to appropriately distribute them. The Gosport 
Lottery funding was generated by different funds, GVA had been approached with regard to 
the distribution of funds as they were well placed within the community to share best 
practice and promote the scheme. 

The Board was advised that the application form would be similar to that used for the 
Gosport Lottery with applicants choosing which area of funding to apply to.

A Councillor questioned whether the proposal met with the prescribed process for the 
distribution of the money. 

The Board was advised that in depth research has been undertaken before an initial report 
had been presented to the Board in November. The Board was advised that there was no 
prescribed process and that the research had shown there to be no pattern to how Councils 
had chosen to distribute the funds.  

Authorities with Parish Councils use them as a mechanism to distribute the funds however, 
Gosport did not have any Parish Councils to do so. 



Economic Development Board
3 July 2019

3

GVA had been chosen as the umbrella organisation as they were deemed to be best 
placed to consult the community and the best vehicle to deliver a fair scheme. GVA also 
had 4 Gosport Borough Councillors on their Board who could overview the whole process. 

A Member suggested that the guidance set by the Government was not being followed as 
the proposal did not allow for a ward based distribution of funds, including consultation with 
the Ward Councillor. The Board was advised that the requirement was that the funds be 
distributed in the local area and that the area was defined as the whole of Gosport. 15% of 
the CIL money available was to be attributed to the ‘neighbourhood’ portion and anyone 
within Gosport could apply. 

The Board was also advised that 80% of the CIL money received was required under the 
Regulation 123 list to be allocated to the Capital projects that the Council undertook that 
would also benefit the Borough. 

The Board was advised that applications could be made from neighbourhood groups and to 
improve Gosport Communities but that applications could only be considered if it only 
benefited Gosport residents. 

The Board was advised that the proposal included an administration fee for GVA as it was 
important that they were not out of pocket in supporting the delivery of the fund.

A suggestion was raised that GVA should ensure that a Return on Investment summary 
should be undertaken as part of the End of Project Report.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the Board were being asked 
to consider the mechanism of delivery of the distribution of CIL and it was reiterated that 
any correctly constituted group, as per the terms, would be eligible to apply. 

It was clarified that if neighbourhood plans were in place then they would automatically be 
entitled to 25% of the CIL money but that there were none in place in Gosport. 

A Member stated that neighbouring Boroughs were not using the same mechanism and 
reiterated that the funds should be available on a ward basis and that the ward Councillor 
should have greater involvement as they were best placed to understand the needs of the 
community. 

Members felt that a requirement of the application form should be that ward Councillors are 
aware of any applications in their wards. 

It was reiterated to the Board that there was no set format to follow and that it was for the 
Council to choose the most appropriate mechanism for delivery and that GVA had been 
chosen as they were at the grassroots of the Community and had officers skilled in the 
delivery of the support in the application for grants process.

A Member advised that the presence of GVA was welcome as it was politically neutral, but 
also welcomed that Gosport Borough Councillors would still have involvement as 
Councillors were appointed to GVA. 

Members recognised that the Gosport Lottery had been a success and had been managed 
well, but requested that a report to the Council be provided detailing the outcome of the 



Economic Development Board
3 July 2019

4

grants awarded. It was suggested that this could be done as part of the reporting process 
undertaken by GVA annually and through the MIB.

Members reiterated their request for involvement of ward Councillors and it was suggested 
and agreed that the application form be amended to include a question as to whether the 
ward councillor had been consulted regarding the application. 

Members felt that the guidance provided by the Government was not specific to wards, but 
areas and advised that in areas where parish councils were present they tended manage 
the allocation of the 15%, but that this was not applicable to Gosport. 

The Board was advised that any proposal for a neighbourhood plan had to be approved by 
Council and would dovetail the Local Plan. They were mainly used in village locations. If 
approved neighbourhood plan areas receive 25% of total CIL funds. 

Members felt that by not ring-fencing funding to specific areas more of the Borough could 
benefit. 

A Member raised concern that it was felt important that all elements of the community 
should be able to access the funds and felt that not all would be constituted in line with the 
requirements. The Board recognised the importance of an accountable process and correct 
governance of the funds and any award of them. It was hoped that any groups that did not 
meet the requirements could consider ‘piggy-backing’ onto constituted organisations such 
as local community associations.

A discussion was raised on whether it is necessary for GVA to ask for bank account details 
on the initial application form. Some members considered that these details should be 
asked at a later stage.

The Board was advised that funding that was requested for less that £1500 would be 
suitable for the lottery fund and that this was seen as an appropriate level for the changing 
funding streams.  The Board was advised that this could be reviewed, along with any other 
element of the process. 

Members advised that currently, although Gosport Borough Council were represented on 
GVA they did not have voting rights, which caused concern for the Board as to whether 
they could have a say on any of the proposed awards of funding. It was requested that 
further investigation be made to ensure that the elected Members attending GVA meetings 
had the appropriate rights on such meetings. 

Members advised that they would like the promotion of the scheme spread as widely as 
possible and that in addition to advertising on social media and through GVA an advert be 
placed in Coastline to ensure publication went as wide as possible. 

It was suggested that in addition to publicising to Councillors a list of those awarded 
funding, that a list of those applying for funding be circulated to Councillors via the 
Members information bulletin. 

Members reiterated that GVA were the best mechanism to deliver the scheme and that 
delivery of the lottery scheme had been a success. 



Economic Development Board
3 July 2019

5

 RESOLVED: That the arrangements for spending the neighbourhood portion of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy in association with the Gosport Voluntary Association (GVA), 
as set out in this report.

 Authority be delegated to the Planning Policy Manager, in consultation with the Monitoring 
Officer, to agree and make minor variations to the final versions of the Appendices emerging 
from the conclusion of formalising arrangements with GVA and arrange that it be publicised 
prominently in the Council’s Coastline magazine including the existence of the scheme and a 
summary of the prescribed method of application and award.  

 

15. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 19:41



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: Wednesday 18th September 2019
Title: Gosport Community Lottery Evaluation               
Status: FOR INFORMATION

Purpose

To provide Members with an evaluation in respect of Gosport’s 
Community Lottery based on its first year of operation. 

Recommendation

That the board note this report. 

1 Background

1.1 Gosport Borough Council established the Gosport Community Lottery 
in 2018 to raise funds for good causes within the Borough. 

1.2 The Council decided that Gosport Voluntary Action (GVA) and 
Gatherwall Limited would promote and run the lottery due to their 
experience and to support the local voluntary sector. 

1.3 The sale of lottery tickets generates funds for local good causes: 40p 
from each ticket is allocated to registered good causes. 
Organisations can register as a good cause and lottery players can 
choose to support one of these good causes or opt for proceeds to 
go the Community Grant Fund.  An additional 10p of ticket sales also 
contributes towards the Community Grant Fund which is distributed 
via two funding rounds.

2 Report

2.1 The Annual Report on the Gosport Lottery, produced by GVA, is 
shown in Appendix A.

2.2 Key highlights are as follows:
 £38538 has been raised in total for the Community and 

Voluntary Sector 
 There are 51 registered good causes, with the top ten 

beneficiaries receiving amount varying from £5000 to £523
 The first Community Grant distribution totalled £6360 with 9 

beneficiates receiving varying amounts from £1500 to £200
 There are 675 active players, with 82% of active tickets being 

bought by Gosport residents
 Although there has been no jackpot winner, prizes have 

Agenda Item 6



totalled £7459
 Local businesses have also supported the lottery by attending 

the grants panel or by providing bonus prizes.

2.3 Gosport is the first Borough to have the Community and Voluntary 
Sector run its lottery and GVA is now sharing its knowledge and 
expertise with others across the country.

2.4 The lottery has been publicised in a number of ways including social 
media, through the good causes and via appeals and case studies 
through the local media. 

3 Legal

3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

4 Finance

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5 Risk Assessment

5.1 There is no risk arising from this report.

6 Conclusion

6.1 The Gosport’s Community Lottery has been established and is 
operating successfully due to the work of Gosport Voluntary Action 
and Gatherwall, which is to be noted.

Financial Services comments: None
Legal Services comments: None 
Crime and Disorder: Some of the work of the beneficiaries 

improves Community Safety.
Equality and Diversity: An Equality Impact Assessment is not 

required. 
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Not applicable.

Corporate Plan: This in in accordance with the Council’s 
Plan as it underpins the core value of 
‘collaborative’ .

Risk Assessment: Not applicable 
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: Annual Report on the Gosport Lottery
Report author/ Lead Officer: Julie Petty (x5381)



 

04/09/2019      Page  1 
INITIAL REPORT – COMMUNITY LOTTERY 

 

 

 

Annual Report  

on  

Gosport Community Lottery 
 

4th September 2019 

  



 

04/09/2019      Page  2 
INITIAL REPORT – COMMUNITY LOTTERY 

 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Gosport Borough Council set up the Gosport Community Lottery in 2018 to facilitate the 
Lottery to raise funds for good causes within the Borough.  The Council did not have the 
resources or expertise to promote and run the Lottery, it was agreed, therefore, that the 
Lottery would be promoted and run by Gosport Voluntary Action Group (GVA) and 
Gatherwell Limited, who are an experienced and proven external lottery manager.  This 
was an innovative solution being the first Council to support the local Council of Voluntary 
Services to implement and manage a Community Lottery. 

 
1.2 Gosport Borough’s residents/good causes are the recipients of the funding, and in addition 

to direct revenue from ticket sales, organisations (not only those registered for the 
Community Lottery) can apply for grants of up to £1500 from a Community Grant Fund 
managed by GVA. 

 

1.3 Funds are raised by the sale of lottery tickets.  Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) 
organisations in the Borough can register as good causes with the lottery and will receive 
40 pence from every ticket sold in their support. Players can either choose to support a 
specific cause or to opt for the proceeds from their ticket(s) to be added to the Community 
Grant Fund which is to be used to support local causes. Tickets are sold through a website 
which is managed by Gatherwell. There is more information at this link:  
https://www.gosportcommunitylottery.co.uk/ 

 

1.4 This report provides a summary of the status of the Lottery on its first anniversary, after 52 
weekly draws.  

 

2 OVERALL SUMMARY 
 

2.1 At the end of August 2019, the key performance measures of the lottery are: 
 51 registered good causes (+42% since the first draw) 
 675 active players (+29%) 
 £38,538 has been raised in total for the VCS organisations since launch 



 

04/09/2019      Page  3 
INITIAL REPORT – COMMUNITY LOTTERY 

 9 good causes received grants totalling £6,360 in the first round of grant awards 
from the Community Grant Fund 
 

3 GOOD CAUSES 
 

3.1 Registered good causes benefit directly from ticket sales revenue.  Every ticket sold 
supporting a specific good cause directly raises 40p for that good cause.  This money is 
paid by Gatherwell to the good causes on a monthly basis, providing a regular income 
stream.   A list of all active good causes in the lottery is attached as an Appendix to this 
report.  There are a further 3 good causes currently in the process of registration. 

 

3.2 Since the first draw the total good cause revenue directly paid from ticket sales is £19,537.  
Of this, the top 10 beneficiary organisations as at 31 August were: 

 

Good Cause Amount 
Trash Cafe network - TRJFP South Coast £5,000 
The Gosport Shed £1,392 
Harbour Cancer Support £1,119 
Gosport Hospital Radio £903 
Growing in Gosport £784 
Gosport Community Association £768 
Gosport Older Persons Forum £646 
Gosport Borough Cricket Club £600 
Gosport Dis-Play Club £598 
Marvels and Meltdowns ADHD and Autism Family 
Centre 

£523 

 

3.3 Twice a year GVA plan to run a grant process to distribute the Community Grant Fund 
accumulated from 10% of each ticket sale plus a share of the revenue from those tickets 
not supporting a specific cause.  The first grants were made in June 2019 totalling £6,360 
from the Community Grant Fund, the beneficiaries of these awards were: 

 

Good Cause Project Amount 
Harbour Cancer Support  Running a Craft Group £1500 
Partners Through Pain Theatre Trip for members and carers £1200 
We Can Read Purchase of Books and Literacy Campaign £750 
MHA Gosport Live at Home Over 60s Cheerleading Project in Bridgemary £710 
Friends of Leesland Park Equipment Hire for Community Event £600 



 

04/09/2019      Page  4 
INITIAL REPORT – COMMUNITY LOTTERY 

Y Services Support for LGBT work £600 
Gosham Rangers Youth 
Football Club 

New Kit for Youth Team £550 

Gosport Wombles Equipment for Litter Picking £250 
Su Seymour Ongoing support for autism Ambassador £200 

 

3.4 A second round of applications from good causes will be open in later in September, GVA 
anticipates that approximately a further £4,000 will be available to be awarded in this 
round of grants. 

 

4 PLAYERS 
 

4.1 At the end of August there were 675 players purchasing a total of 1266 tickets in the 
weekly draw (a reduction from the maximum in the year of 722 and 1402 respectively). 

 

4.2 Whilst there has been no jackpot winner (£25,000) from the 68,078 tickets purchased 
since launch, the lottery has provided 1383 winning tickets, with prizes totalling £7,459.   
The maximum prize won has been £250; this has been won on 14 occasions. 

 

4.3 82% of the active tickets have been bought by residents of the Borough, a further 10% by 
residents of nearby Boroughs (i.e. Fareham, Portsmouth).  The remainder (about 80 
tickets) have been bought by supporters of good causes across the country (e.g. 
Southampton, Coventry, Horsham) representing an import of financial support to the 
Borough’s good causes from elsewhere in the country. 

 

5 COMMUNITY SUPPORT 
 
5.1 GVA would also like to acknowledge local organisations/businesses who have supported 

the lottery in two further ways: 
 

5.1.1 Grant Panel.  The grant panel was supported by STS Defence Systems, The Gosport Globe 
and Action Hampshire.  One representative from each organisation attended the panel 
review and helped decide on grant allocations. 

 



 

04/09/2019      Page  5 
INITIAL REPORT – COMMUNITY LOTTERY 

5.1.2 Bonus Prizes.  In addition to the weekly ticket prizes GVA has been supported by local 
organisations/businesses with offers of bonus prizes.  The organisations who have 
supported the lottery in this way are: 

 

 Boat House Café 
 Eco Freaks 
 Gosport Ferry Company 
 Gosport Leisure Centre 
 HMS Sultan 
 Hovercraft Museum 
 Hovertravel 
 Solent Go 
 The Ritz Cinema 

 

6 PROMOTING GOSPORT 
 

6.1 As the first CVS to run a lottery GVA are now supporting references to other CVS and 
councils based on our experience.  GVA have provided references to Walton and South 
Derbyshire CVS, Fareham Borough and Cornwall County Councils as well as attending 
lottery operators meetings organised by Gatherwell. 

 

6.2 The good causes and GVA have helped promote the lottery through their memberships, 
through social media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram) and through published appeals and 
case studies in the Gosport Globe, The News and Radio Solent. 

 

6.3 Good causes have also provided publicity for the lottery through case studies published in 
local media and the internet, examples include articles such as those referenced at these 
links 

 

https://www.gva.org.uk/news/shedloads-to-benefit-from-the-gosport-community-lottery/ 

https://www.gva.org.uk/news/allotment-holder-jim-harvests-a-250-win/ 

 

  



 

04/09/2019      Page  6 
INITIAL REPORT – COMMUNITY LOTTERY 

7 APPENDIX – List of registered good causes 
 

17th Century Village Age Concern Gosport 
Alverstoke Lawn Tennis Squash & Badminton 
Club 

Alverstoke Preschool 

Brighterway Citizens Advice Gosport 
Driving Force Dustbusters 
Fareham and District Branch of Parkinsons UK Friends of Stanley Park 
Gosham Rangers Football Club Gosport Access Group and Disability Forum 
Gosport Advocacy Gosport and Fareham MS Society 
Gosport Befriending Services Gosport Borough Cricket Club 
Gosport Borough Hockey Club Gosport Community Association 
Gosport Community Fund Gosport Day Centre 
Gosport Dis-Play Club Gosport District Scout Council 
Gosport Dolphins Swimming Club Gosport Falcons Football Club 
Gosport Gardens and DART (Decorating & 
Repair Team) 

Gosport Globe Community Publications CIC 

Gosport Hospital Radio Gosport Live at Home Scheme 
Gosport Older Persons Forum Gosport Walking for Health 
Growing in Gosport Harbour Cancer Support 
Helping Angels Home-Start Hampshire supporting families in 

Gosport 
Loud and Proud Marvels and Meltdowns ADHD and Autism 

Family Centre 
Motiv8 South NCI Gosport 
Rowner North District Girl Guide Association Solent Junior Devils Ice Hockey Club 
Stop Domestic Abuse Surgery Signposting 
The Breastfeeding Network - Gosport The Diving Museum 
The Friends of Leesland Park The Gosport Shed 
The Hovercraft Museum Trust The Oakley Waterman Caravan Foundation Trust 
Trash Cafe network - TRJFP South Coast We CAN Read 
Y Services for young people  

 



Board/Committee: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
Date of Meeting: 18 SEP 2019
Title: SURRENDER OF EXISTING LEASE AND REGRANT OF 

NEW LEASE OF LAKESIDE CAFÉ, COMPASS POINT 
Author: PROPERTY SERVICES MANAGER 
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

To seek the Board’s approval to accept the surrender of the current lease and grant 
a new lease to the new owner of the Lakeside Café based at the Compass Point, 
Walpole Park, Gosport 

Recommendation

That the Board approve the surrender of the existing lease and re-grant a new lease 
and authorise the Chief Executive or his delegated representative in conjunction 
with the Property Services Manager to enter into such documentation to effect this 
decision  

1 Background

1.1 The upper floor of the Compass Point has been a café since opening in 
2005.  The current tenants are Mrs Dawn Morrey and Mrs Karen Davis and 
their ten year lease expires on 15 August 2021.  

1.2 The current tenants have decided to sell the business as a going concern.  
As they are the named tenants and not a company, in order for the new 
owner Mrs Wie Liu to run the café business the lease will need to be 
surrendered and a new lease granted

1.3 The Council cannot play a part in the sale and purchase of the business but 
does have control of the terms of the lease through which the new owner 
will operate

2 Report

2.1 The terms of the existing lease will remain largely in force, as the tenants 
have run a very successful business, opening 10am-4pm (3pm Sunday) 
between Wednesday and Sunday.

     2.2 As the business has been a success it is felt that the levels of rent and 
turnover rent payable are comparable to good market rates.  The current 
ground rent is £3,754 per annum excluding VAT, and the new ground rent 
will be £3,800 per annum again excluding VAT.  The ground rent will be 
reviewed on RPI terms on the fifth and tenth anniversaries.

Agenda Item 7



2.3 The turnover rent will remain at 3% of gross turnover excluding VAT (as a 
general guide the annual turnover rent is in the region of £2,500.

2.4 The term shall be fifteen (15) years with a break clause at any time after the 
fifth anniversary

2.5 The tenant will be Mrs Wie Liu, who will take the lease in her name and not 
a company

2.6 The repairing and decorating terms will be unchanged with the new tenant 
being responsible for the internal parts and the balcony and the landlord 
retaining responsibility for the exterior parts and the walkway 

2.7 The user clause has always been as a café/restaurant and bar and though 
the current tenants have operated primarily as a café, evening functions 
can and have been held.   The new tenant has indicted she would like to 
open later in the evening as a restaurant and bar and this is fully permitted 
within planning and licensing regulations, but the Council will covenant that 
a morning and afternoon café/tearoom provision will remain should later 
opening be sought

2.8 The recharges to the tenant of utilities and insurance where paid by the 
Council will continue

2.9 The other terms of the exiting lease will be carried forward into this lease

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 The Council is not obliged by law to grant a new lease to the proposed new 
tenant but the Council cannot dictate terms of a private business sale.  If 
the Council should decide not to grant a lease to the new tenant then it runs 
the risk of the current tenant closing the business at the end of the term 
with the Council then left to find a new tenant to take over of see the 
building closed with the costs and financial losses that could incur.

3.2 The new tenant will take the lease in her name and not as a business, 
meaning that in the event of a breach of covenant or non-payment of rent 
the Council is empowered to take action against her.

3.3 The grant of a new lease carries little risk to the Council, indeed the 
business aims of the new tenant could see a greater turnover rent 
percentage payable than is currently achieved

4 Conclusion

4.1 In the circumstances of the business arrangement, the Council has a good 
tenant on good terms and there is every reason to believe the new tenant 
will operate equally successfully on the terms offered. 



4.2 The business operates from an excellent and novel designed premises and 
this surrender and re-grant of a new lease will see a café/restaurant 
business continue to operate there for another fifteen years 

Financial Services comments:
Legal Services comments:
Crime and Disorder:
Equality and Diversity:
EIA: 
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:
Corporate Plan: Develop the Economy
Risk Assessment:
Background papers:
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Plans and Photo
Appendix ‘B’

Report author/ Lead Officer: Dean Pickett



APPENDIX A – PLANS AND PHOTOS

Plan 1 – Ground Floor Store

Plan 2 – First Floor Café



Photo 1 – Compass Point



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Date of Meeting: 18TH SEPTEMBER 2019
Title: LAND AT GRANGE FARM, ROWNER FOR GARDEN 

CENTRE DEVELOPMENT & GATEWAY
Author: TOM SOUTHALL 
Status: FOR DECISION

PURPOSE

At the Economic Development Board on 19th September 2018 the Board accepted 
the recommendations of the Report ie

 The long leasehold disposal of the Gosport Borough Council land shown 
edged red on the plan at Appendix A to the report together with rights of 
access, services etc for a term of 99 years and subject to the conditions set 
out in the report.

 Following the completion of open marketing, to authorise the Deputy Chief 
Executive in consultation with Economic Development Board Chairman to 
finalise the terms of a new Development Agreement, Agreement for Lease 
and Lease of the above, complete the disposal and on completion, report 
back and update the Board.

The detail of the September 2018 report confirmed that the recommendation was to 
dispose of approx 5 acres of land at Home Heath, Grange Farm, to kick-start the 
development of a new retail garden centre by a garden centre operating company.
The new garden centre would incorporate facilities eg WC's, café and parking etc 
that would also be used by visitors to the adjacent Alver Valley Country Park and 
thus provide a substantial proportion of the amenities required for the Grange Farm 
Gateway into the Alver Valley Country Park.

RECOMMENDATION

This report is supplemental to the report dated 19th September 2018 and 
recommends that the Economic Development Board agree:

1. The long leasehold disposal of approx. 5.70 acres of land outlined red on the plan 
at Appendix A of this report in lieu of the approx 5 acres recommended for 
disposal at Appendix A  of the September 2018 Report (attached herewith at 
Appendix B).  

2. To authorise the Chief Executive Officer to enter into a Deed of Variation with the 
Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO), to vary the wording of the existing 
restrictive covenant affecting the site to permit the site to be used as a retail 
garden centre and Gateway into the Alver Valley Country Park.

Agenda Item 8



1.0 Background

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2 

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The Report to the Economic Development Board report on 19th September 
2018 sets out the background content.

The Council's various inter-related and abutting property matters at Grange 
Farm continue to move forward and complete with a formal Lease now 
granted to C17th Village and the Rowner Regeneration Scheme Phase 1B 
residential development and new access road into the site substantially built 
and on programme for completion at the end of January 2020.

Report

As a result of the marketing of the garden centre opportunity it was identified 
that operators would require slightly more land for the garden centre than that 
approved for disposal at the September 2018 Economic Development Board.
This slightly greater area of approx. 5.7 acres is shown at Appendix A of this 
report.

The Council's preference was to dispose of the site on a long leasehold 
basis.  The Council's only capital cost is the provision of an adequate power 
supply to the site, the cost of which has already been budgeted.  
 Bearing in mind the garden centre operating company will bear all other 
design and construction costs together with all operating costs going forward, 
the Council's external valuer recommended that the Council seek an annual 
rent of £10,000 pa with 5 yearly rent reviews for a term of 99 years OR if 
greater in any year, 2% of the annual turnover.

The cost of all repairs going forward is the responsibility of the garden centre 
operating company.  There will be no recurring Landlord's costs under the 
lease.  The preceding terms were set out in the marketing particulars and are 
now agreed with the prospective garden centre operating company.

The Council's Planning team have been involved in discussions and 
meetings at all stages and are supportive in principle of the enlarged garden 
centre proposal arising from the change in land area.

Solicitors for the Council and the selected garden centre operating company 
are finalising appropriate legal documentation for the development and grant 
of the new Lease to the tenant.  It is anticipated that contracts will be 
exchanged by the end of September 2019.

The timescale for the pre-construction element of the development process 
set out in the original 2018 report has changed slightly due in part to the 
garden centre operator's preferred timescale.   However, subject to the grant 
of planning permission it is still intended that the construction works will 
commence on site in March 2020, shortly after the completion of the access 
road by Taylor Wimpey. No construction traffic will be permitted to use Little 



2.7

2.8

2.9 

Woodham Lane during the construction of the garden centre which is 
programmed for completion in Feb 2021.

The Head of Streetscene and the Council's Countryside Team have been 
involved at all stages and are aware of the revised land arrangements.  There 
continues to be no impact on the Countryside Team's continued use of the 
old farm courtyard buildings and their access to the Councils retained land at 
Grange Farm.

In addition to progressing the disposal arrangements, the Council have also 
been in discussion with the DIO for some months to vary the wording of the 
restrictive covenant affecting the site.  This variation is key to the use of the 
site as a garden centre.

Whilst in the DIO have always indicated their agreement to co-operate, 
negotiation has been necessary to achieve this.  Following formal valuation, 
terms are now agreed and in consideration of the payment of £10,000 to the 
DIO, the covenant will be varied to permit the garden centre (& Gateway) 
uses as we require.  This sum has already been set aside in the Council's 
budget for the realisation of this development.

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

 Risk Assessment

The Council are asked to sell the long leasehold interest (99 yrs) in the land 
outlined red on the plan at Appendix A of this report.  This will be at the open 
market value.  

The land to be released is designated in the Local Plan as mainly public open 
space however a large part is unmanaged and utilised only occasionally by 
the Council's contractors. 

The garden centre operating company have now engaged with the Council's 
Legal and Planning teams and are about to commence pre-application 
consultation prior to submission of the planning application.

The Council's appointed Legal Team have prepared the draft Deed of 
Variation required  to be completed with the DIO simultaneously with 
exchange of the Development Agreement in order to vary the permitted use 
of the land under the restrictive covenant.

The Council's appointed Legal Team have completed a title & constraints 
check in respect of the garden centre site and there are no known issues 
which would preclude the development

Conclusion 

The proposals contained in this report will facilitate the new, larger garden 
centre development and formally vary the permitted use of the site in the 
restrictive covenant to accord with this.



Financial Services comments: Costs of this scheme have been fully 
budgeted for within the approved capital 
programme. An annual rental income  of 
at least £10,000 p.a. is expected which 
will be reflected in future revenue 
budgets. 

Legal Services comments:
Crime & Disorder N/A
Equality & Diversity N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

None

Corporate Plan: The development of the Alver Valley 
Country Park and garden centre is a 
Council priority

Risk Assessment: As contained in Section 3.0
Background papers: Report to the Economic Development 

Board 19th September 2018.  
Appendices/ Enclosures:
Appendix A Plan showing the revised area of land to 

be leased.
Appendix B Plan showing the original area of land to 

be leased, approved at the 19th 
September 2018 Economic Development 
Board

Report author/ Lead Officer: Tom Southall



APPENDIX A







APPENDIX B






	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Economic Development Board held 3 July 2019
	Minutes

	6 Gosport Community Lottery Evaluation
	Community Lottery Annual Report September 2019

	7 SURRENDER OF EXISTING LEASE AND REGRANT OF NEW LEASE OF LAKESIDE CAFÉ, COMPASS POINT
	8 LAND AT GRANGE FARM, ROWNER FOR GARDEN CENTRE DEVELOPMENT & GATEWAY

